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January 7, 2010
Dear Leona:

The Master in Teaching Program strives to cooperate with the Office of Admissions in the efficient and timely processing of MIT applications. With that goal in mind, we have met with Admissions staff over the years, and continued to evaluate what of the many pieces of processing and evaluating a MIT application file would be done by Admissions staff, and what would be done by MIT faculty and staff.

You raised a concern this week that you had heard from three past applicants wanting to reactivate their MIT application files without submitting a new application or application fee. You specifically mentioned Rebecca Watts. After researching my email correspondence with Ms. Watts and her application file, I determined Ms. Watts had been denied last June and thus did need to resubmit a new application form and fee if reapplying to MIT. I have notified her by email today that this is the case.

I have spoken with our current Teacher Education Programs Director Dr. Sherry Walton and past director Dr. Scott Coleman about their understanding about how and when MIT applicants could reactivate their admissions file. We all understand that admissions materials are kept on file for two years. They both concurred that MIT policy was for denied applicants needing to reapply with a new form and a new application fee. They both concurred that applicants from a prior year with an incomplete file that wish to be considered the following year for admission, could contact the Admissions office in writing(or by email) to request their file be reactivated without a new application fee. They also concurred that the deferral process was not going to be utilized by MIT the past few years, due to on-going changes in teacher certification at the state level, and thus even admitted applicants that wished to defer, would be told they could reactivate their files for reconsideration the following year by notifying the Admissions office in writing and again with no new fee. The agreements were discussed in meeting with Doug Scrima. I did actually have notes from those minutes, but unfortunately discarded them summer 2009 in a flurry of cleaning out my office since the notes were several years old and these policies had been implemented smoothly the past few years.

Thus, I was very surprised by your assertion that Admissions had never reactivated a MIT application file without a new form and a new application fee.  One of our current students, Jacqueline Palmer, applied for fall 2007. She was admitted and then had to withdraw early in fall 2007. She was told she had to go through and admissions decision process again for fall 2008, but that she could notify Admissions in writing of her intent to reapply for fall 2008 and without an additional admissions fee. Jackie wrote Doug Scrima an email with this request on Jan. 15, 2008. Doug forwarded the email to us. We then emailed you asking you to pull Jackie’s 2007 application file and activate it for fall 2008, which you did without a new form or fee.
Since we have notified past applicants that they could reactivate admissions files with a written request, we will continue this policy this application cycle. Our director is happy to meet with the new Admissions Director later this year to discuss whether the policies outlined above need re-examination.

I have tried to be a good team player with the Admissions staff. When I began my position with MIT in August 2002, the Admissions cycle for fall 2002 was completed. When I was oriented to the processing and evaluation of MIT applications in winter 2003, Nan Mick was creating MIT admissions files. In prior years, Admission staff had reviewed MIT endorsement worksheets to verify courses listed by applicants on the endorsement worksheets had actually been completed successfully with at least a 2.0 gpa. However, the evaluation by Admissions staff did not take into consideration whether courses listed were actually appropriate to meet the endorsement requirement. With the increasing complexity of endorsement requirements and state scrutiny of certification programs being able to document their students did have appropriate content preparation for endorsements, this review of endorsement requirements and verification of what had been met and what still would be a conditional admissions requirement was taken over by myself, saving Admissions staff an inordinate amount of time on MIT files. We do appreciate the efforts of the Admissions staff in creating physical MIT admissions files, entering applicant data, tracking the receipt of admissions materials, creating the initial letter acknowledging the receipt of the application, and finalizing the final admissions decision letter, which is primarily drafted by MIT staff.
Sincerely,
Maggie
Maggie Foran
Associate Director Teacher Education Programs
Certification Officer
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